
AGENDA 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, June 10, 2014, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 
21420 Main St. NE, Aurora, OR  97002 

 
1.  Call to Order of the City Council Meeting 
 
2. City Recorder Calls Roll 
 
   Mayor      Graupp 
  Councilor Sallee 
  Councilor Brotherton 
  Councilor Sahlin 
  Councilor Vlcek 
 
3. Consent Agenda 
 

I. City Council Meeting Minutes – May 13, 2014  
II. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes –May 2014 
III. Historic Review Board Minutes –April 2014 
 

Correspondence  
 

I.  
  

4. Visitors 
  Anyone wishing to address the City Council concerning items not already on the 

meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the 
City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 

 
5. Mayor’s Report 
 
6. Public Hearing 
 
 A. Discussion and or Adoption of 2014/2015 Budget as Proposed by the Aurora 

 Budget Committee.  
 
7. Discussion with Parks Committee 
 
8. Discussion with Traffic Safety Commission 
  
9. Reports 

Aurora City Council Agenda  June 10, 2014 
 

This is a public meeting and all interested citizens are invited to attend.  The meeting place is not handicapped 
accessible; those needing assistance should contact the city Office three (3) working days before regularly scheduled 
meetings. The minutes of this and all public meetings are available at City Hall during regular business hours. All 
meetings are audio taped and may be video taped 

  



  
A. Marion County Deputy Report – (not included in your packet) 

 
B. Finance Officer’s Report – Financials ( included in your packets) 

1. Revenue & Expense Report 
2. Discussion on Audit Report 

 
C. Public Works Department’s Report – (included in your packet) 

1. Monthly Status Report (Storm Water) 
2. Monthly Status Report (Water) 
3. Parks Report, OSU Tree Report 
4. Sewer Dept Report 

 
D. City Recorder’s Report (included in your packet)  

•  
E. City Attorney’s Report – (not Included in your packet)  

•   
10. Ordinances and Resolutions & Proclamations  

  
 A. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 686 Resolution In 

 Accordance with ORS 221.760   
 B. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 687 Resolution to  
  Receive State Revenue Share Funds.  
 C. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 688 Resolution to 

 Adopt the 2014/2015 Budget.  
 D. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 689 Resolution to 

 Levy Taxes. 
 

11. New Business 
 

A. Discussion and or Action on Proposed Rate Increase for Wave Broadband.  
B. Discussion and or Action on Recommendation from Planning Commission to 

Approve Extension of Previous Land Use Decision.  
C. Discussion and or Action on LOC Legislative Priorities Survey.  
 D. Discussion and or Action on Recommendation to Hire Part Time Public Works 

Assistant.  
 

12. Old Business    
 

A.  Discussion and or Action on ACVA Grant Fund Request for Island Maintenance.  
 

 
13. Adjourn   

Aurora City Council Agenda  June 10, 2014 
 

This is a public meeting and all interested citizens are invited to attend.  The meeting place is not handicapped 
accessible; those needing assistance should contact the city Office three (3) working days before regularly scheduled 
meetings. The minutes of this and all public meetings are available at City Hall during regular business hours. All 
meetings are audio taped and may be video taped 

  



Minutes 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 13, 2014, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 
21420 Main St. NE, Aurora, OR  97002 

 
STAFF PRESENT:    Kelly Richardson, City Recorder    

    Pete Marcellais, Marion County Deputy 
     Mary Lambert, Finance 
     Darrel Lockard, Public Works Superintendent  
      
      
 
STAFF ABSENT:   Dennis Koho, City Attorney 
      
 
 
       
 
VISITORS PRESENT:  Eric Anderson, Wilsonville 
     Matt Cofer, Salem 
     Tom Schlachter, Woodburn 
     Pamela Rose, Salem 
     Ray Phelps, Woodburn 
     John Burt, Dallas 
     Bill Simon, Aurora 
     Derck Godwyn, Salem 
     Lori Coukoulis 
      
             

1. Call to Order of the City Council Meeting   
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Bill Graupp at 7:02 p.m. 

 
2. City Recorder does roll call 
 
   Mayor Graupp – present 
   Councilor Sallee-  present 
   Councilor Brotherton -present 
   Councilor Sahlin – absent 
   Councilor Vlcek – present 
 
3. Consent Agenda 
 

I. City Council Meeting Minutes – March 11, 2014, Footer error and on pg 2 referring 
to (they) please clarify who is speaking.  

  Page 1 of 6 
City Council Meeting May 13, 2014 



II. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – not in packet. 
III. Historic Review Board Minutes –not in packet. 
 

Correspondence  
 

I. Marion County Resolution approving 4H Extension 14R-3 
 
John Meredith explains briefly to the council opting in or opting out of the district and 
participation or not.  
 
Derrick Godwin, Region Administrator for Marion County Extension services explains that 
the funding goes to the OSU extension office and 3 of the County Commissioners will be the 
board of directors.   
 
Councilor Brotherton asks if basically you are looking for a funding source and the 
clarification is yes from the Federal Government.  
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda with the corrections stated was made by Councilor 
Sallee and is seconded by Councilor Brotherton. Motion Approved by all.  
 
 
 

4. Visitors 
  Anyone wishing to address the City Council concerning items not already on the 

meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the 
City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 

 
Annie Kirk, asks council if the parade form is on the agenda? Yes it is there is a brief discussion 

regarding the route proceeding down 3rd street or not.  
 
No one else spoke…. 
 
 
5. Mayor’s Report,  
 
 A. Mayor Graupp Most of the items that I want to address is already on the agenda 

so I really don’t have anything at this time. We are wrapping up budget items and 
apparently there was some vandalism over the weekend.  

 
  
6. Discussion with Parks Committee, Councilor Sahlin Councilor Sahlin is absent so no 

update is available. Annie Kirk asks council who is doing the islands and triangles around 
town and informs council that the RFP is being modified to fit what we need.  

 
There is a brief discussion regarding the various uses of Revenue Sharing money.  
 

  Page 2 of 6 
City Council Meeting May 13, 2014 



7. Discussion with Traffic Safety Commission, Deputy Marcellais informs council that 
Ehlen Rd will be receiving new lines and signs. Also inform them that a letter from 
ODOT is on its way regarding the STIP and that 2nd and 3rd street proposals has been 
removed.  

 
8. Reports 
  
           A.  Marion County Deputy Report – (included in your packet)  

• Vlcek asks about the body that was found, it was a suicide and the person was from 
Portland.  

• We apprehended 3 suspects from the surrounding area which were minors they basically 
went around and vandalized and broke into cars. We have approximately 23 victims so 
far.  

• Councilor Sallee states I like the reports.  
• We have apprehended the suspect in the Main Street Mercantile theft.  
• We have also apprehended the suspect in both of the store thefts.  
• Waiting on fingerprints regarding the canvas theft. 
• Yearend report will be at the June meeting.  

 
No more questions at this time.  

 
B. Finance Officer’s Report – Financials (included in your packets) 

1. Revenue & Expense Report 
• Finance Officer Mary Lambert reads her report as included in the packet. 
• The Council would like to see the % spent report each month.  

 
C. Public Works Department’s Report – (not included in your packet)  
   

1. Monthly Status Report (Storm Water) 
2. Monthly Status Report (Water) 
3. Parks Report, OSU Tree Report 

Superintendent Lockard reads his report as presented.  
• Sink hole on Main Street appears to be a back fill issue. 
• Routine Operations are going well. 
• Well 5 is back online currently we are at around 100 to 110 previously we were at 90 so 

it is an improvement.  
• Councilor Vlcek ask what is the recovery time of water are we behind on the static level 

at this point? Darrell no not really it seems to be fine. What I really want to know is there 
going to be a problem this summer Darrel I cannot answer that with the data I have 
available right now.  Is there a report that shows our usage levels yes but it doesn’t show 
static levels and recovery rate. Vlcek have you been flushing lines because I have noticed 
and increase of brown lately Darrel yes we have.  

• We will be graveling Filbert and Sayre Drive in the near future.  
• I met with TTT regarding their park maintenance contract because currently I have not 

been happy with the way the park has been looking.  

  Page 3 of 6 
City Council Meeting May 13, 2014 



• Councilor Sallee asks if it would be possible to get a one year projection list of the top 5 
priorities.  

 
No more questions, 
 
 

D. City Recorder’s Report (included in your packet) reads her report. 
Discussion items were, 

Asks Council to look at the property schedule regarding the park structures it 
seems very low to me and it doesn’t include the Amphitheater from 2010. What 
does the council feel comfortable increasing the values from 114,000? I propose 
increasing another 100,000. At this point the council would like to see what the 
premiums are now and what they would be with that amount of increase.  
No more questions.  
 

E. City Attorney’s Report – (not Included in your packet)  
• Mayor Graupp informs Council that Dennis is the Keizer’s budget chair and that 

is why he is absent this evening. He is currently working on acceptable conditions 
regarding a recent bid on the Eddy property.  

 
10. Ordinances and Resolutions 
 

  A. Discussion and or Action on Ordinance Number 476 an Ordinance 
 Proposed to Increase Permit and Inspection Fees. Second Reading.  

Motion to approve ORD 476 is made by Councilor Brotherton and seconded by 
Councilor Vlcek. All passed. 4-0 

 B. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 682 a Resolution to 
 Initiate Formation of Marion County 4H Extension.  

A motion to approve Resolution Number 682 is made by Councilor Sallee and seconded 
by Councilor Vlcek. Passed by all.  

 C. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 683 a Resolution to 
 Renew Contract with SEDCOR  

A motion to approve the SEDCOR renewal is made by Councilor Brotherton and is 
seconded by Councilor Vlcek. Passed by all.   

 D. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 684 a Resolution for 
 The 2015 Special City Allotment Grant.  

 A motion to approve Resolution Number 684 the SCA grant in the amount of 50,000 is 
made by Councilor Vlcek and is seconded by Councilor Sallee. All passed.  

 E. Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 685 for Republic  
Services.  
 A Motion to approve Resolution Number 685 is made by Councilor Vlcek 

and seconded by Councilor Sallee and Councilor Brotherton abstains because he 
interacts with the business in another forum.  All yes. 1 abstains.  

 
 
  

  Page 4 of 6 
City Council Meeting May 13, 2014 



11. New Business 
 

A. Discussion and or Action on Republic Services Proposal for Rate Increase.  
  
Matt Cofer, presents Toni Schlachter, Ray Phelps, I will answer questions if you have 

any. The proposal is for 8% the 35 gallon group is the largest impacted. Primary 
reasons for the increase are costs from fuel and employees. New equipment 
coming in and how does this help our costs because less time in the shop really. 
Larger trucks don’t work very well on the small roads.  

 
Talk to me about sustainability and how the money works for that first the fuel the trucks 

al have particulate filter we have to purchase trucks with those on it. Recycling 
really is the consumer and the volume is increasing.  

How does this affect other cities they explain the break down amongst the other cities on 
PG 7.  

it really is based on density and volume so it’s not 8% across the board in other cities no 
because they are on a different schedule.  

 
 
B. Discussion and or Action on Verizon Proposal and Preliminary Sketches. 

Council wants clarification on term of years as 5 years and 5 year increments.  
 
Consensus of the council is to move forward with the proposal if the terms are met.  
 
Councilor Vlcek asks what the health risk of surrounding property owners is. What are 

the industry standards I would like to know both of these?  
 
C. Discussion and or Action on Audit Proposal and Renewal with Grove 

Mueller and Swank for the 2013/2014 Audit Services.  
 
A motion to is made to approve the Grove Mueller and Swank Proposal for 2013/2014 

Audit Services is made by Councilor Brotherton and is seconded by Councilor 
Sallee. Motion passes by all.  

 
D.  Discussion and or Action on Letter of Resignation from Aurora Municipal 

Court Judge Zyryanoff.  
Motion to accept letter of resignation is made by Councilor Sallee and is seconded by 

Councilor Vlcek. Motion passed by all.  
 
E. Discussion and or Action on Letter of Interest and Recommendation for Lori 

Coukoulis as New Judge Candidate.  
 
A motion to accept this candidate as the Aurora Municipal Court Judge is made by 

Councilor Sallee and is seconded by Councilor Brotherton. And move forward 
with a contract. Motion passed by all.  

  Page 5 of 6 
City Council Meeting May 13, 2014 



F. Discussion and or Action on OLCC License Renewal and Special Events 
License.  

 
Motion to approve OLCC licenses is made by Councilor Brotherton and is seconded by 

Councilor Sallee. Motion passed by all.  
 
G. Discussion and or Action on the 2014 Colony Day Parade Form and Parade 

Route.  
Consensus of Council is to move forward with the proposed Parade Form with the route 

change to go down 3rd street.  
 
H. Discussion and or Action on Revenue Share Request for Aurora Colony Days 

2014/2015 Budget Year.  
 
A motion to approve the Revenue Share request made from Colony Days is made by 

Councilor Brotherton and is seconded by Councilor Vlcek in the amount of 
$2,500. Motion passed by all.  

 
 
12. Old Business  
 

A.  Discussion and or Action on approval of ACVA Draft Letter to Citizens 
Regarding Weed Control. As long as the letter is signed by the ACVA the 
council is fine with it being sent out.  

B.  Discussion and or Action on ACVA Grant Fund Request for Island 
Maintenance. Tabled 

 
 
Any other topics for tonight’s meeting hearing none Mayor Graupp  
 

13. Adjourn at 9:20 pm.   
 
  
 

 
__________________________________ 

Bill Graupp, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Kelly Richardson, City Recorder 

  Page 6 of 6 
City Council Meeting May 13, 2014 





























 

 

June 10, 2014 Report from the Finance Officer 

 

• Checking account balance as of 6-4-2014 is $ 172,829.55 
• LGIP account balance as of 5-31-2014 is $ 1,142,930.50.   This is 

after our bond payment of $245,406.25. 
• Monitoring all funds to keep appropriations within budget. 
• Finishing up the budget process.  
• Keeping current with payables and receivables. 
• Continuing with front office duties. 

   
 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Mary C. Lambert 

 

 

 





 

 

City Recorder Report 

Memo 
To: City Council 

From: Kelly Richardson 

CC: None 

Date: 6/5/2014 

Re: Recorders Report Month of May 2014 report 

Activities and ongoing projects are as follows: 

 Ongoing secretarial duties for the City Council and Planning and Historic Review Board, along 
with attending the meetings once a month.  

 Working closely with Historic Review Board on guideline updates and changes.  

 Attending Conference Committee Meetings 

 Records Request update  

 None pending 

 Working with City Planner on Aurora Municipal Code Updates.   

 Working on Election Forms and Packets 

 Working on Building Permits as there has been and increase in building. 

 Ongoing needs of the City 

 Working on organization of electronic files 

 Working with CIS and Gustafson INS updating our insurance needs.   

 Updating Planning and Zoning Files and Forms/Checklists. 

 Working with HRB on Historic Review Guidelines Updates and Formating. 

1 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 686 
 

WHEREAS, ORS 221.760 provides as follows: 
 
 The officer responsible for disbursing funds to cities under ORS 323.455, 
366.785 to 366.820 and 471.805 shall, in the case of a city located within a county 
having more than 100,000 inhabitants according to the most recent federal decennial 
census, disburse such funds only if the city provides four or more of the following 
services: 
 

1. Police protection 
2. Fire protection 
3. Street construction, maintenance and lighting 
4. Sanitary sewer 
5. Storm sewers 
6. Planning, zoning and subdivision control 
7. One or more utility services 

 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, city officials recognize the desirability of assisting the state officer 
responsible for determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance 
with ORS 221.760, now, therefore, 
 
 Be it resolved that the City of Aurora hereby certifies that it provides the 
following four or more municipal services enumerated in Section 1, ORS 221.760: 
 
 Police protection 
 Street construction, maintenance and lighting 
 Sanitary sewer 
 Storm sewers 
 Planning, zoning and subdivision control 
 Water services 

 
Approved by the City Council of the City of Aurora this 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
 

 
              
       Bill Graupp, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Kelly A. Richardson, City Recorder 

RESOLUTION NO. 686 
 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 687 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO 
RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 

 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED: 
 

Pursuant to ORS 221.770, the City of Aurora hereby elects to 
receive state revenues for the fiscal year 2013-2014. 

 
PASSED by the Common Council the 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor this 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
            
     Bill Graupp, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
        
Kelly A. Richardson, CMC  
City Recorder 

 
I hereby certify that a public meeting before the Budget Committee was 

held on May 7, 2014, and a public hearing before the City Council was held on 
June 10th, 2014, giving citizens an opportunity to comment on the use of State 
Revenue Sharing.  

 
 
 
        
Kelly A. Richardson, CMC  
City Recorder 



City of Aurora 
Resolution No. 688 

 
A Resolution Adopting the 2014-2015 Budget 

 and Making Appropriations. 
 

Adopting the Budget 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Aurora hereby adopts the 
budget approved by the Budget Committee for the Fiscal Year 2014-2015, in 
the sum of $2,675,070, now on file at City Hall. 
 

Resolution Making Appropriations 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014 
and for the purposes shown below are hereby appropriated as follows: 
 
 

General Fund 
   Personnel Services    $    88,688 
   Materials and Services        341,100 

   Contingency          259.601 
     Total             $ 689,389 
 
 
  City Hall Building Fund 
   Capital Outlay     $   119,827 
     Total     $  119,827 
 
 
  Park Reserve Fund 
   Capital Outlay     $       1,146 

  Total     $      1,146 
 

 
  Park SDC Fund 
   Capital Outlay      $     27,069  
     Total     $    27,069 
 

Resolution No.688 - Adopting the 2014-2015 Budget,                                                                               June  10, 2014 
And Making Appropriations   Page 1. 



  Street/Storm Operating Fund 
   Personnel Services     $   27,131 
   Materials and Services          71,400 
   Capital Outlay           69,500 
   Contingency          106,022  
       Total    $ 274,053 
 
 
  Street/Storm Reserve Fund 
   Street Maintenance Projects   $    51,993 
     Total     $   51,993 
 
 
  Street/Storm SDC Fund 
   Capital Outlay     $    22,192 
     Total     $   22,192 
 
 
  Water Operating Fund 
   Personnel Services             $   89,089 
   Materials and Services        131,177 
   Capital Outlay           46,500 
   Transfers Out           28,000 
   Debt Service to Others          20,892  
   Contingency         182,342 
     Total            $  498,000 
 
 
  Special Public Works Maintenance Fund 
   Materials and Services       $    39,717 
    Total      $   39,717 
 
 
  
  Water Reserve Fund  
   Capital Outlay     $   46,681 
     Total     $  46,681 
 
 
  Water SDC Fund 
   Capital Outlay     $     60,398 
     Total     $    60,398  
 

Resolution No.688 - Adopting the 2014-2015 Budget,                                                                               June  10, 2014 
And Making Appropriations   Page 2. 



Sewer Operating Fund 
   Personnel Services    $     81,318 
   Materials and Services         185,769 
   Capital Outlay              3,000 
   Contingency          166,213 
     Total     $  436,300 
 
 
  Sewer Reserve Fund 
   Capital Outlay     $    55,727 
     Total     $   55,727 
 
 
  Sewer SDC Fund 
   Capital Outlay     $     22,778 
   Transfers Out            10,000  
     Total     $    32,778 
 
 
  G O Wastewater Bond Fund 
   Debt Service     $  309,800 
   Unappropriated End Fund Balance        10,000 
     Total     $ 319,800 
   
 
  TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS ALL FUNDS         $2,675,070 
 
 
 
 
Adopted this   10th  day of June 2014. 
 
 
 
             
      Bill Graupp, Mayor 
 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
        
             
      Kelly A. Richardson, City Recorder 
       

Resolution No.688 - Adopting the 2014-2015 Budget,                                                                               June  10, 2014 
And Making Appropriations   Page 3. 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 689 
 
 

A RESOLUTION LEVYING AD VALOREM TAXES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015. 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
The City Council of the City of Aurora hereby imposes the taxes provided for in the 
adopted budget at the rate of 2.4849 per $1000 of assessed value for operation and 
in the amount of $300,510 in bonded debt: and that these taxes are hereby levied 
upon the assessed value as of 1:00 AM, July 1, 2014 on all taxable property within 
the district in the following categorization. 
 
 General Government Limitation Excluded from Limitation 

 
General Fund 

 
$2.4849 per $1000 

 

Debt Service   

GO Wastewater Bond  $300,510 

The above allocation and categories are broken down to show which are subject to 
the limits of Section 11b, Article XI of the Oregon Constitution. 
 
 

 
Adopted this   10th  day of June 2014. 
 
 
              
      Bill Graupp, Mayor 
 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
        
              
      Kelly Richardson, CMC 
      City Recorder 
       
 

Resolution No. 689 Levying FY 2014-2015 Ad Valorem Taxes June 10, 2014 





CITY OF AURORA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
STAFF REPORT: Interpretation 2014-02 [INT-14-02]  
DATE:      June 4, 2014 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER:  Clifford Bixler   
 
REQUEST:  Interpretation of the Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) in regards to an 

extension request for previous land use approvals for SUB-09-01 and 
SDR-09-01 and minor modification to previous Site Development 
Review approval. 

 
SITE LOCATION:  Northwest of intersection of Ottaway Road and Highway 99E. 

Map 41.W.13B Tax Lots 1500 and 2002.  
 
SITE SIZE:    Lot 1500- 1.78 acres, or approx. 77,537 sq. ft.  
    Lot 2002- 0.57 acres, or approx 24,829 sq ft.  
 
DESIGNATION:  Zoning:  Commercial (C) with Gateway Property Overlay 
 
CRITERIA: Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) Chapter 16.58 Site Development Review 

and 16.78 
 

ENCLOSURES: Exhibit A: Assessor Map 
 Exhibit B:  Request letter from applicant 
 Exhibit C: Revised Site Plans 
      
 
I. REQUEST 
 
Interpretation of the Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) in regards to an extension request for previous land 
use approvals for SUB-09-01 and SDR-09-01 and minor modification to previous Site Development 
Review approval. 
 
II. PROCEDURE 
 
Pursuant to 16.78.150, approvals for Site Development Review shall be effective for a period of two years 
from the date of approval. AMC 16.78.150.E. allows for additional one year extensions by request to the 
Planning Commission and recommendation to the City Council. Notice of the decision for extension shall 
be mailed to adjacent owners in compliance with 16.78.   
 
Subject to 16.58.060 and 16.58.070, any modification to previously approved plans for development 
which is not determined to be a major modification shall be approved, approved with conditions, or 
denied following the Planning Director's review based on the finding that no code provisions will be 
violated; and the modifications is not a major modification. Minor modifications shall be processed and 
noticed in accordance with AMC 16.78. 
 
The request for extension and revised site plans were received on May 8, 2014. The application was 
determined complete by Staff and reviewed by the Planning Commission at their June 3rd meeting. 

INT-14-02  Bixler   1 
 



Pending a decision by the City Council, a Notice of Decision will be mailed to adjacent property owners. 
The City has until September 1, 2014, or 120 days from acceptance of the application to approve, modify 
and approve, or deny this proposal. 
 
 
III. APPEAL 
 
Appeals are governed by AMC 16.78.  Any party with standing may appeal the final decision to 
LUBA in accordance with ORS 197.830 to 197.84 within the 21-day appeal period of the mailed 
Notice of Decision.  
 
 
IV. CRITERIA AND FINDINGS 
 
The applicable review criteria for an extension request for a previously approved SDR is found in AMC 
Chapter 16.78- Limited Land Use Decisions. 
 
16.78.150 Expiration and extension of approvals 
E. Following the first one year extension by the Planning Director, the applicant may submit a request 
to the Aurora Planning Commission so that the Planning Commission may transmit a 
recommendation to the Aurora City Council for additional one-year approval extensions. 
 
FINDINGS: The applicant has received two previous extension requests. The original approval of SDR-
09-01 and SUB-09-01 expired on June 5, 2011. The applicant requested a two year extension to the 
previously approved applications on September 15, 2012 which was granted by the City Council for all 
land use applications in the City- extending the approval to June 22, 2013. The Planning Commission 
previously granted a one year extension on October 9, 2012 to June 22, 2014.  
 
On June 3, 2014, the Planning Commission recommended the City Council grant a one-year extension to 
SUB-09-01 and SDR-09-01. 
 
Staff finds this criteria is met.   

 
16.58.070 Minor modification(s) to approved plans or existing development. 
A. Any modification which is not within the description of a major modification as provided in Section 
16.58.060, may be considered a minor modification. 
 
FINDINGS: Staff finds the proposed revision to remove the second story from Buildings 2 and 3 do not 
meeting the criteria for a major modification and the revision is considered a minor modification.  

 
B. A minor modification shall be approved, approved with conditions or denied following the Planning 
Director’s review based on the finding that no code provisions will be violated; and the modification is 
not a major modification.  
C. Minor modifications shall processed and noticed in accordance with Chapter 16.78.  

INT-14-02  Bixler   2 
 



 
FINDINGS: A notice of decision of determination of minor modification will be issued with a decision 
on the extension request. Staff finds these criteria are met.  
 
 
V. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Based upon the findings outlined in the staff report, the Planning Commission recommends the City 
Council  Commission approve the application  for the Interpretation (File No. INT-14-02).  
 
 
VI. PLANNING COMMISSION SAMPLE MOTIONS 
 

A. Motion to adopt the findings in the staff report and approve Interpretation 14-02 for a one year 
extension: 

1. As presented by staff and the Planning Commission, or 
2. As amended by the City Council (stating revisions)  

 
OR 

 
B. Motion to deny Interpretation 14-02 (stating how the application does not meet the required 

standards),  
 

OR 
 

C. Continue the decision to a time certain or indefinite (considering the 120-day limit on 
applications) in order to collect additional information from the applicant or staff (stating the 
information required in order to make a decision) 

INT-14-02  Bixler   3 
 



 

 

 

June 2, 2014 

Dear Chief Administrative Official: 

For the past three months, eight policy committees have worked very diligently to identify and propose 
specific actions as part of the League’s effort to develop a pro-active legislative agenda for the 2015 
session.  They have identified 22 legislative objectives as set forth in the enclosed ballot and legislative 
recommendation materials. These objectives span a variety of issues and differ in the potential resources 
required to seek their achievement.  Therefore, it is desirable to prioritize them in order to ensure that 
efforts are focused where they are most needed. 

The LOC Board of Directors has made long term commitments to two issues critical to cities:  revenue 
and land use reform.  As a result of their designation as top legislative priorities on an ongoing basis 
neither of these issues appear on the enclosed ballot. 

The League will continue to advocate for a constitutional amendment that gives local voters the 
opportunity to pass local option levies outside of compression.  Currently, statewide property tax 
limitations can prevent local voters from supporting the services they demand via local option levy.  This 
amendment would enable voters to determine the level of services they desire and the associated level of 
taxation.  The League will also advocate for a constitutional amendment that will improve the fairness of 
the property tax system by recalibrating taxes at the time a property is sold.  Oregon’s property tax system 
created a new assessed, or taxable, value based on 1995-96 real market values and capped annual growth.   
As property values have grown at different rates since that time, huge disparities in tax bills have 
emerged.  The League will also continue to engage in legislative efforts to reform land use processes to 
reduce the burden on cities as they make local decisions about urban growth.  Land use requirements have 
become increasingly difficult for cities to implement – with increased costs, time, and frequency of 
appeals – and the League will build on recent efforts to reform the urban growth boundary process to 
ensure that reforms streamline the land use process. 

Each city is being asked to review the recommendations of the policy committees and provide input to the 
LOC Board of Directors as it prepares to adopt the League’s 2015 legislative agenda.  After your city 
council has had the opportunity to review the 22 proposals and discuss them with your staff, please return 
the enclosed ballot indicating the top four issues that your city council would like to see the League focus 
on in the 2015 session.  The deadline for response is July 25, 2014.  The board of directors will then 
review the results of this survey of member cities, along with the recommendations of the policy 
committees, and determine the League’s 2015 legislative agenda. 

 



 

Your city’s participation and input will assist the board in creating a focused set of specific legislative 
targets that reflect the issues of greatest importance for cities.  Thank you for your involvement, and 
thanks to those among you who gave many hours of time and expertise in developing these proposals. 

Do not hesitate to contact me or Craig Honeyman, Legislative Director, with questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

Michael J. McCauley 
Executive Director 
 
 
cc:   Oregon Mayors  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



INSTRUCTIONS 
 

1. Each city should submit one form that reflects the consensus opinion of its city council on the top four 
legislative priorities for 2015. 
 

2. Simply place an X in the space to the left of the city’s top four legislative proposals (last page of the document).  
 

3. The top four do not need to be prioritized.  
 

4. Return by July 25th via mail, fax or e-mail to: 

Angela Carey 
League of Oregon Cities 
1201 Court St. NE, Suite 200 

  Salem, Oregon  97301 
 Fax – (503) 399-4863 

acarey@orcities.org  
 
Thank you for your participation. 
 



LOC	Policy	Committees’	Legislative	Recommendations	
 

Priority Description 
Community Development 
A. Provide tools for brownfield 

remediation including $10 million 
in recapitalization of the 
redevelopment fund, new 
incentives such as tax credits, or 
regulatory modifications. 

Supports finding funding sources and cost reductions for cleaning up brownfields to 
support economic development.  The Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Program provides 
gap financing to clean-up industrial sites but has not been recapitalized to address the 
increasing need for clean-up of brownfield sites.  However, the fund is not large enough 
to address this need on a statewide basis, so further support for efforts to determine 
alternative means to incentivize brownfield redevelopment will increase available 
industrial sites and help drive economic development.  Overall, increasing tools to 
redevelop brownfields provides more options to cities looking to redevelop current 
brownfields into a better use. 

B. Support capitalization of the 
industrial site readiness loan 
program at $10 million and the 
industrial site readiness 
assessment program at $200,000. 

Provides funding for two programs created in 2013 for addressing lands that are zoned 
industrial but are not being used for industrial purposes: the industrial site readiness 
program and the industrial site readiness assessment program.  The first provides 
forgivable loans to local governments that bring industrial sites to shovel ready status, 
such as by placing infrastructure or cleaning up a brownfield.  The second allows regions 
to determine what is preventing land designated for industrial use from being built for 
industrial use.  However, no money was provided to fund either program in the 2013-
2015 budget.   

C. Prioritize grants providing 
assistance for natural disaster 
planning and updating 
comprehensive plans to address 
likely natural disasters in a 
community, and increase the grant 
funds available to cities through 
the DLCD’s general grant funds to 
$2 million. 

In the last two biennia, the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development 
general fund grant program has seen a significant drop in the money allocated to it with 
increasing need from local governments to address technical planning issues and update 
pursuant to periodic review.  In addition, the Oregon Seismic Safety Policy Advisory 
Commission, has released a report related to ongoing need for upgrading resilience in 
response to a major earthquake and recent natural disasters have raised awareness relating 
to land use planning.  Raising the general fund grant program back to the 2009-2011 
budget levels will help more cities address their planning needs and seek technical 
assistance.  This would also alter the uses for these funds to include planning that 
increases resilience to natural disasters and meet their Goal 7 requirements. 

D. Reform the Post Acknowledgment 
Plan Amendment process to 
require appellants to raise issues 
before the local government 
before raising the issue on appeal. 

Changing the appeals requirements for post-acknowledgement plan amendments 
(PAPAs) will keep decision making for land use policy at the local level first, allowing 
city official to determine the scope of legislative changes they make to their plans without 
trying to fight a new issue on appeal.  This “raise it or waive it” standard currently exists 
for quasi-judicial decisions at the local level and insures that local decisions are not 
attacked on appeal on an issue that a city could have resolved in finalizing its decision.  
Modifying the PAPA appeal insures more land use decisions start with addressing all 
issues at the local level first. 

Energy 
E. Modify the existing “1.5% green 

energy technology for public 
buildings” requirement to allow 
for offsite solar investments. 

Oregon statute currently requires public contracting agencies to invest 1.5% of the total 
contract price for new construction or major renovation of certain public buildings on 
solar or geothermal technology.  The requirement allows for offsite technology, but only 
if the energy is directly transmitted back to the public building site and is more cost-
effective than onsite installation.   
 
Removing the requirement that an offsite project be directly connected to the public 
building project could result in increased flexibility for local governments to invest in 
solar projects that are more cost-effective and that could provide for increased solar 
energy production. 



LOC	Policy	Committees’	Legislative	Recommendations	
 
F. Support efforts to eliminate the 

sunset on the Low Carbon Fuel 
Standard program.  

Oregon’s low carbon fuel standard, also known as the Clean Fuels Program, was initially 
adopted by the 2009 legislature.  The standard would require fuel producers and importers 
to cut the carbon intensity of gasoline and diesel fuels by ten percent over a 10-year 
period in order to reduce greenhouse house gas emissions, reduce dependence on 
imported oil, and expand upon Oregon’s renewable fuel industry.  Fuel producers and 
importers can meet the standard through providing additional biofuels, natural gas or 
electricity, or by purchasing clean fuel credits.  The program includes several consumer 
protection mechanisms to help ensure an adequate fuel supply and competitive fuel 
pricing. 
 
The program, as initially adopted is scheduled to expire, or sunset, on December 31, 2015.  
The League will work to support efforts to eliminate the sunset on the program. 

Finance & Taxation 
G. Phase out the 3% discount for the 

early payment of property taxes. 
Oregon law offers a 3% discount for property owners who pay the full amount due by 
November 15th. A 2% discount is offered for those that pay two-thirds of the amount due 
by November 15th.  
 
The League will phase out the discount over a period of time and adopt a penalty for 
failing to pay by November 15th to mitigate any cash flow issues for local governments.  

H. Improve the fairness of how new 
and improved property is added to 
the tax roll. 

New and improved property is brought on the tax rolls by applying an annual county-wide 
ratio of assessed values (AV) to real market values (RMV) to the new or added value of a 
property, in an attempt to replicate the property tax discount given to properties via 
Measure 50.  
 
However, significant variation between AV and RMV exist within a county, resulting in 
the discount often being inequitable compared to neighboring properties, as well as being 
out of line with the discount originally offered to properties when Measure 50 passed in 
1997.  
 
As a result, similarly situated and valued properties can have significantly different 
property tax liabilities.  
 
The League will work to modify the property tax system to improve the fairness of how 
new property is added to the tax roll.    

I. Improve clarity and certainty 
around transient lodging tax 
statute.   

State law limits how transient lodging taxes increased or adopted after July 2003 can be 
spent, with statute requiring that 70 percent of increased or new transient lodging tax 
revenues be expended on tourism promotion or tourism-related facilities. There is 
uncertainty, however, as to what qualifies as a tourism-related facility and the timeline in 
which such expenditures can be legally challenged. 
  
The League will seek to improve the certainty around what qualifies as a tourism-related 
facility and reasonably limit the timeframe in which such expenditures can be legally 
challenged.   

General Government 
J. Reform Oregon’s recall 

procedures to encourage a greater 
participation of the electorate and 
ensure that it is used for reasons 
involving misconduct. 

Under Oregon law, an elected official may be recalled by an initiative petition for any 
reason after the first six months of their term.  Limiting recalls to cases where there has 
been demonstrated wrong doing by a court or regulatory body (such as the Oregon 
Government Ethics Commission) would prevent the misuse of recalls without limiting the 
power of the electorate to reverse a decision.  Recalls should be limited to acts of 
malfeasance or offenses involving moral turpitude. 



LOC	Policy	Committees’	Legislative	Recommendations	
 
K. Allow for price comparison when 

procuring architects and 
engineers. 

In 2011 the Oregon Legislature required cities to use a qualifications based selection 
(QBS) process that prohibits the consideration of price until an initial selection has been 
made when hiring architects, engineers and photogrammetrists. This requirement prevents 
local governments form comparing pricing and effectively eliminates price competition 
when procuring these services.   

L. Clarify and enhance medical 
marijuana dispensary regulations. 

Existing restrictions on the placement of medical marijuana dispensaries (MMD) are 
inconsistent with land use regulations and should be clarified. Additionally, background 
checks are not required on people who work in MMD and there is no regulation on the 
manufacture of oils and other liquid marijuana products that use flammable/explosive 
substances in their processing. 

M.  Enhance mental health services.  Oregon’s police departments have marked an increase in interactions with the mentally ill 
in recent years.  Crisis intervention teams (CIT) have proven effective and deescalating 
interactions with the mentally ill, but this service model is not available in all parts of the 
state.  Additionally, there is a demonstrated need for “drop-in” mental health services that 
allow for treatment before a person enters a state of crisis.  There should be statewide 
access of CITs, and emergency access to mental health services to promote patient and 
community safety.  Additionally, mental health services should be examined holistically 
to ensure that Oregon is providing the best possible care to the mentally ill.     

Human Resources 
N. Ensure that arbitrator awards are 

in compliance with state, as well 
as local policies. 

Currently, an arbitrator’s award overturning an employer’s disciplinary decision must 
comply with state policies on issues including, but not limited to: use of force, sexual 
harassment, or misconduct. Precedent has established that only state policies apply to the 
enforceability to an arbitrator’s award.   

O. Ensure that collective bargaining 
agreements trump state mandates 
on police investigations.   

“The Police Officer’s Bill of Rights” was intended to offer protections for officers who 
were under investigation if there was no collective bargaining contract or the contract was 
silent on how investigations were to be conducted.  Changes made in 2009 have resulted 
in confusion and manipulation of the bargaining process.  The statute needs to be 
amended to bring it back to the original intent of the bill.  

P. Require earlier submission of last 
best offer. 

Under current law, last best offers (LBOs) must be submitted 14 days prior to opening of 
arbitration in the event parties have declared an impasse, and binding arbitration is being 
used to settle the contract. Most arbitrators use a 30-day cancellation policy that requires 
payment even if parties settle prior to the commencement of arbitration.  Requiring LBOs 
to be submitted 35 days prior to the opening of arbitration would provide an opportunity 
to settle without paying unnecessary fees.   

Telecommunications 
Q. Support the reintroduction of 

legislation that repeals ORS 
221.515 (HB 2455 -7 in 2013) 
removing the franchise fee rate 
and revenue restrictions which 
currently apply to incumbent local 
exchange carriers, or other 
legislation that: 
 Does not preempt local 

authority to manage the public 
ROW and be compensated for 
its use;  

 Maintains or increases the 
opportunity for revenue 
growth; and 

 Is technology neutral.   
 
 

Protection of local authority to manage public rights of way (ROW) and receive 
compensation for any use of those facilities continues to be at the forefront of the 
League’s telecommunications agenda.  The League’s “Oregon Municipal Policy” 
generally asserts local government Home Rule authority and specifically refers to the 
telecom management and compensation authority of Oregon cities. 
 
Since 1989 state statute has caused a disparity between certain types of 
telecommunications providers with regard to how franchise fees are collected.  The 
League’s preference is equity between all providers using the ROW, but with continued 
local ability to negotiate individual franchise agreements with individual service 
providers. 
 
During the 2013 legislative session the League supported efforts by Comcast to enact 
legislation doing away with the disparity.  HB 2455 would have repealed ORS 221.515, 
thus allowing cities to charge all telecommunications in the same manner.  The proposal 
received a hearing but was not approved in committee.   
 
The committee chair may be interested in re-introducing the proposal in 2015.  However 
the telecom industry, this time including Comcast, is likely to introduce legislation 
dealing with the disparity in a manner that cities may find objectionable, including rate 



LOC	Policy	Committees’	Legislative	Recommendations	
 

caps on an overly narrow revenue base and other policies that could infringe upon both 
management and compensation authority and negatively impact city revenues. 

R. Oppose legislation preempting the 
ability of cities to manage and 
receive compensation for the use 
of a public ROW including: 
 Establishment of a “one-size-

fits all,” state-wide franchise 
fee policy and collection 
system. 

 Prohibition of a city’s 
authority to levy franchise 
fees on other local 
government entities. 

Same as above.  

Transportation 
S. Pass a comprehensive 

transportation funding and policy 
package containing the following 
elements: 
 A gas tax increase of up to 5 

cents/gallon.  
 Index the gas tax either to the 

consumer price index or some 
other accepted and relevant 
economic index. 

 Continued development and 
expansion of the state’s 
commitment to a 
transportation user fee based 
on vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT). 

 License plate fee increases to 
include lightweight trailers. 

 No change in the 
constitutional dedication of 
State Highway Trust Fund 
dollars to highway, road and 
street projects (Article 9, 
Section 3a, Oregon 
Constitution).   

 New revenues coming to the 
State Highway Trust Fund 
should continue to be split 
between the state, counties 
and cities 50%-30%-20% 
respectively. 

 Increase in the statutory (ORS 
366.805) “Small City 
Allotment” fund from $1 
million to $5 million annually, 
split evenly between the 
Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) and 
the cities’ share of the trust 
fund. 

The League of Oregon Cities agrees that the state’s transportation system and the policy 
and funding programs that support it must be multimodal in scope.  The League will 
therefore support and work to achieve passage of legislation in 2015 that seeks to address 
funding and policy initiatives relating to all modes (streets, bike/ped, transit, rail, aviation 
and marine) and in so doing addresses such issues as: 

 Connectivity 
 Safety 
 Jobs and economic development 
 Transportation impact on climate change 
 Active transportation and public health 

Given the fact that maintenance and preservation needs have outpaced the resources 
available for streets, roads and highways, and given the threat that represents to 
investments already made in the transportation system, the League will insist on a 
transportation package that increases and makes more sustainable the ability of all 
government jurisdictions to preserve and maintain these assets. 
 
Note: The Small City Allotment has not been increased since its inception in the early   
          1990’s.  The additional revenue to cities from the 2009 Jobs and Transportation Act  
          did not increase road funding for small cities.   



LOC	Policy	Committees’	Legislative	Recommendations	
 

 No restriction, moratorium or 
preemption of local 
government ability to generate 
their own revenues for 
transportation funding.  

 Adequate funding for the 
maintenance and preservation 
of “orphan highways” in 
Oregon as part of a more 
robust jurisdictional transfer 
program. 

T. Continued or enhanced funding 
for ConnectOregon 

ConnectOregon is the state’s premier multi-modal funding program, and is funded out of 
lottery revenues. 

Water/Wastewater 
U. Support efforts and program 

funding to address Oregon’s long 
term water supply needs including 
recapitalization of the Water 
Conservation, Reuse and Storage 
Grant Program and 
implementation of a place-based 
pilot program for local water 
resources planning 

According to the Oregon Water Resources Department, 2013 marked the fourth driest 
year on record for Oregon, with some areas experiencing their driest year on record yet.  
Oregon experienced below average precipitation in 2013 and continuing into 2014.  As of 
May 2014, snow measurement sites in many part of Oregon show record lows for 
snowpack levels.  As a result, summer streamflows are expected to be below average and 
water shortages are likely for many part of Oregon.  
 
The League will work in conjunction with the Oregon Water Resources Department to 
fund programs to address water supply shortages.  These efforts will include support for 
ongoing funding of the Water Conservation, Reuse and Storage Grant program which 
provides grant funding for water supply project feasibility studies.  The League will also 
support efforts for the Oregon Water Resources Department to establish a place-based 
planning pilot program to facilitate local collaboration among interested stakeholders and 
the creation of a blueprint for long-term integrated water resources planning and 
implementation.  

V. Support efforts to establish a 
program that would provide low-
interest loan opportunities to 
address failing residential onsite 
septic systems. The new loan 
program would support repair and 
replacement of failing systems or 
conversion to a municipal 
wastewater system, if the 
conversion is at the request of the 
impacted municipality.  

According to the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, over 30 percent of 
Oregonians rely on septic systems to treat wastewater from their homes and businesses.  
Many of these systems are within the boundaries of a municipal wastewater system, and a 
number of these systems are in need of repair or replacement.  Failing septic systems, 
especially those within proximity to groundwater resources, create a significant human 
health hazard.  However, significant costs to address failing septic systems often create a 
burden for homeowners who are unable to pay for costs associated with repair, 
replacement or conversion over to a public sewer system.   
 
The League will work with the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality to establish 
a revolving loan program that private residents can access in order to address failing 
septic systems.  The League will further advocate that the program include mechanisms to 
encourage participants to convert over to a municipal wastewater system if conversion is 
at the request of the impacted municipality.    

 



City: _________________________________ 
 
 
 
Community Development 

A.  Provide tools for brownfield remediation including $10 million in recapitalization of the redevelopment fund, new 
incentives such as tax credits, or regulatory modifications. 

B.  Support capitalization of the industrial site readiness loan program at $10 million and the industrial site readiness 
assessment program at $200,000. 

C.  Prioritize grants providing assistance for natural disaster planning and updating comprehensive plans to address 
likely natural disasters in a community, and increase the grant funds available to cities through the DLCD’s general 
grant funds to $2 million. 

D.  Reform the Post Acknowledgment Plan Amendment process to require appellants to raise issues before the local 
government before raising the issue on appeal. 

 
Energy 

E.  Modify the existing “1.5% green energy technology for public buildings” requirement to allow for offsite solar 
investments. 

F.  Support efforts to eliminate the sunset on the Low Carbon Fuel Standard program. 
 
Finance & Taxation 

G.  Phase out the 3% discount for the early payment of property taxes. 
H.  Improve the fairness of how new and improved property is added to the tax roll. 
I. Improve clarity and certainty around transient lodging tax statute.   

 
General Government 

J.  Reform Oregon’s recall procedures to encourage a greater participation of the electorate and ensure that it is used 
for reasons involving misconduct.     

K.  Allow for price comparison when procuring architects and engineers.   
L.  Clarify and enhance medical marijuana dispensary regulations.   
M.  Enhance mental health services.  

 
Human Resources 

N.  Ensure that arbitrator awards are in compliance with state, as well as local policies.    
O.  Ensure that collective bargaining agreements trump state mandates on police investigations. 
P.  Require earlier submission of last best offer. 

 
Telecommunications 

Q.  Support the reintroduction of legislation that repeals ORS 221.515. 
R.  Oppose legislation preempting the ability of cities to manage and receive compensation for the use of a public ROW. 

 
Transportation 

S.  Pass a comprehensive transportation funding and policy package. 
T.  Continued or enhanced funding for ConnectOregon.  

 
Water/Wastewater 

U.  Support efforts and program funding to address Oregon’s long term water supply needs including recapitalization 
of the Water Conservation, Reuse and Storage Grant Program and implementation of a place-based pilot program 
for local water resources planning. 

V.  Support efforts to establish a program that would provide low-interest loan opportunities to address failing 
residential onsite septic systems.  The new loan program would support repair and replacement of failing systems 
or conversion to a municipal wastewater system, if the conversion is at the request of the impacted municipality.   

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Note: As indicated, property tax and land use reform will remain as priority efforts. 

Please mark 4 boxes with an X that reflects the top 4 issues 
that your city recommends be added to the priorities for the 
League’s 2015 legislative agenda. 


	1 June 2014 Council agenda
	AGENDA
	Aurora City Council Meeting

	2 Council Minutes May draft- 
	Minutes
	Aurora City Council Meeting

	3 May 2014 PC Minutes
	4 HRB April 2014 Minutes
	5 June finance council report
	6 Public works June 2014
	7 City Recorder Report May 2014- 
	8 Resolution Number 686 ORS 221.760
	9 Resolution Number 687- to rec state rev
	10 Resolution 688 Adopting  Budget
	11 Resolution Number 689-levying Taxes
	12 WaveBroad Band Increase 2014
	13 INT-14-02_Bixler extension to CC
	CITY OF AURORA
	SITE LOCATION:  Northwest of intersection of Ottaway Road and Highway 99E.
	Map 41.W.13B Tax Lots 1500 and 2002.
	III. APPEAL


	14 LegislativePrioritySurveyJune2014
	Legislative Priority Transmittal Letter 2014
	INSTRUCTIONSEmail
	2015 priorities description table
	BallotPDF


